
Page | 1 

Town of Colonial Beach Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Date:  Thursday, April 7, 2016 – Town Center, 22 Washington Avenue 
Time:  5:30 p.m. 

 

 
Present:  Robin Schick, Chairwoman 

Maureen McCabe, Vice Chairwoman 
Diana Clopton 
Eric Nelson 
Pam Tolson 

 
Absent:  Bob Busick 

 
Staff:  Brendan McHugh, Planning and Zoning Administrator 
  Tori Haynes, Planning Assistant 
 
Other:  Jack Clark, RRMM Architects 
  Jason Mullins, Timmons Group 
 

 
Item 1:  Call to Order 
 
Ms. Schick called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. 
 
Item 2:  Approval of the Agenda 
 
Ms. Schick amended the agenda to include a committee appointment and a citizen letter from Dr. Peter Fahrney under 
Other Topics. 
 
Ms. McCabe asked to include a discussion on a mural ordinance under Other Topics. 
 
Ms. Schick called for a voice vote.  
 
 The amendments to the agenda were approved unanimously. 
 
Item 3:  Approval of the Minutes of the January 2016 Special Meeting, February 2016 Regular Meeting, and 
March 2016 Regular Meeting 
 
Ms. Schick called for a voice vote to approve the minutes of the January 2016 Special Meeting, February 2016 Regular 
Meeting, and March 2016 Regular Meeting. 
 
 The minutes were approved unanimously. 
 
Item 4:  Public Comment on Planning Commission Matters (Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Item 5:  Committee Reports 
 
Ms. Schick welcomed Mr. Nelson to the Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. Tolson said she was trying to do a weekly Facebook posting. The most recent post had 485 views. 
 
Ms. McCabe said she was working on revising the CIP applications for next year. 
 



Page | 2 

Item 6:  Informal Review and Recommendation of Nuisance/Trash Ordinance 
 
Mr. McHugh said the Town Attorney has been working on amendments to the nuisance ordinance, and the Town 
Council asked the Planning Commission to offer recommendations. 
 
Ms. Clopton expressed concern over replacing the nuisance ordinance with a trash ordinance, which the town already 
has. She asked why we aren’t just amending the trash ordinance. 
 
Ms. McCabe said she also felt we need a public nuisance ordinance. She said there’s a need for changing it, but not for 
throwing it out. 
 
Mr. Nelson said this is his first meeting and he’s not sure how this came up or what the background is. 
 
Ms. Schick asked why it’s being reviewed. 
 
Mr. McHugh said he believed it was to be more in line with state code. 
 
Ms. Schick said the current ordinance seems to be very clearly in line with state code. 
 
Ms. Tolson said she had the same concerns as Ms. Clopton. She asked if this is in response to a problem we’re seeing in 
the town, or is this a one-time occurrence. She expressed concern that “reasonable notice” is too vague. 
 
Ms. Schick said we don’t have enough information. 
 
Mr. McHugh said he would speak with the Town Attorney for clarification. 
 
Ms. Schick said the new ordinance is too non-specific. We’re removing a very clear notification process with a very clear 
set of appeals and putting in a less enforceable version. If we’re going to rewrite it completely, we need to pull the trash 
ordinance and not necessarily the nuisance ordinance. She also asked for the opinion of the code enforcement official.  
 
Ms. McCabe suggested doing a study of other towns’ nuisance ordinances. 
 
Ms. Clopton said the old ordinance talks about snow removal, and the revised doesn’t. 
 
Ms. Schick said she’s not against rewriting the ordinance, but this doesn’t seem to give more authority to staff, or 
protect the citizen either.  
 
Item 7:  Public Hearing on CUP-01-2016, Colonial Beach Elementary School 
 
Mr. McHugh presented the following staff report: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 3 

PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT STAFF REPORT 

PROJECT NAME: Colonial Beach Elementary School CUP TOWN COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/14/2016  

CASE NUMBER:  CUP-01-2016 APPLICANT: Colonial Beach Public Schools 

PROJECT STATUS: 

 

  Preliminary Sketch    Rezoning                           

        

  Preliminary Plat    Conditional Use Permit 

 

  Prelim. Final Plat    Concept Plans 

             

  Final Plat     Text Amendment 

                                                          

  Vacation     Comp. Plan Amend.          

OWNER: Colonial Beach Public Schools 

LOCATION: 1st Street 

VOTING DISTRICT:   

PARCEL NUMBER:   

TOTAL SITE AREA:  8.127 acres 

SITE AREA DEVELOPED:  

CBPA:    RMA 

EXISTING STRUCTURES:   High School and Middle School/ 

Elementary School Mod Pods 

 

ADDITIONAL SITE DATA:  

FLOOD HAZARD:   N/A 

CURRENT ZONING:   R-2 

ACTION REQUEST:   Recommendation to Town Council STAFF:  B. McHugh DATE: 04/07/2016 

 

PRIOR ACTIONS/CASE HISTORY 

 

REZONINGS:   N/A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: N/A 

VARIANCES:   N/A 

SUBDIVISIONS:   N/A 

OTHER DATA:   N/A 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Colonial Beach Public Schools have applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to build a new 

Elementary School in the Residential General (R-2) District. This property already has two CUPs for the High 

School and the Elementary School Mod Pods. The previous conditional use permits contain conditions 

requiring any further modifications to the property to require a new conditional use permit. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The site is zoned Residential General (R-2).  For this use, a conditional use permit is required, per Article 6 of 

the Colonial Beach Zoning Ordinance.  The Comprehensive Plan identifies this site as being located within 

the Central Area of Town.  The plan continues by stating that the numerous schools, churches and other 

public/semi-public uses help maintain activity levels in the core of the Town.  Additionally, one of the 

goals of the plan states: 

 

Provide an adequate level of public services to all people of the Town and recognize the regional 

aspects of certain facilities/services and the need for regional cooperation.   

 



Page | 4 

An objective under this goal states that the Town should support top quality educational opportunities for 

all students.  The elementary school proposal will be a major step in meeting this objective as stated in the 

comprehensive plan.  Furthermore, the Future Land Use Map identifies the site as a school use. 

 

Staff has been working closely with the school and some of the professionals that have been contracted 

for the job.  Concerning the project, the following points have been addressed: 

 

Zoning 

 The current Mod Pods will be removed when the building is constructed. 

 Lot and Structure, Development Standards and parking meet the requirements of the Colonial 

Beach Zoning Ordinance. 

 Chesapeake Bay Act Regulations meet requirements.  

 E&S Plans have been approved by the Environmental Inspector. 

 

Transportation 

 The children will from the back of the building in the same manner as is currently conducted.  

Building 

 Plans have not been submitted, however RRMM Architects have met with the Building Official and 

Fire Marshall to determine what is needed for architectural plans.  Those plans will need to be 

approved by the Building Official before the contractors receive a building permit to start work. 

Public Works 

 Water and sewer will be run through the back of the building through an unimproved section of 

Given Street off of Jackson Street. 

 The Utility Design has been approved by Public Works. 

 The plan will require utility easements to be approved by Town Attorney. 

 

Police Department 

 Plans have been reviewed and approved with no comments. 

 

Fire Department 

 An emergency access route is proposed to be installed behind the building off of 1st Street. The 

Entrance off of 1st Street will require an approved Land Use Permit from Public Works. 

Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 

 Stormwater is being addressed through two bio-retention ponds located in the front and rear of 

the building. 

 A Stormwater Management Plan has been submitted to DEQ. 

 Engineers addressed the comments from the DEQ review and resubmitted the plans. 

 The School plan will require a State Stormwater Permit from DEQ before work can begin. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends sending this proposal to the Town Council with a favorable recommendation with the 

following conditions: 

 

1.  The applicant shall record the To Wit (approval form) with the Westmoreland County Circuit Court 

Clerk’s office within 30 days of receipt and provide a copy of the recorded document to the 

Planning Department with the deed book and page number. 

 

2.  This CUP is for operation of an elementary school. 

 

3.  The applicant shall have a plat/deed prepared dedicating the easements for water and sewer 

lines that cross the property.  This plat and the associated deeds of dedication shall be submitted 

and approved by the Town prior to a final Certificate of Occupancy (CO). 

 



Page | 5 

4.  The applicant shall install an emergency access route off of 1st Street behind the proposed school. 

 

5.  The building plans shall be approved by the Colonial Beach Building Official. 

 

6.   BMP facilities installed on the property shall require the execution of a BMP agreement and it’s 

recordation in the Westmoreland County Clerk’s Office prior to the issuance of the final Certificate 

of Occupancy. 

 

7.    No type of CO shall be issued until this conditional use permit has been approved by Town 

Council. 

 

8.  The owner shall comply with all Federal, State and Local Laws and/or Ordinances. 

 

9.   A State Stormwater Permit from the Department of Environmental Quality shall be approved prior 

to beginning work. 

 
 
Ms. Schick opened the public hearing at 5:55 p.m. There were no speakers. Ms. Schick closed the public hearing and 
opened commissioner discussion. 
 
Ms. McCabe expressed concern that, although the plans meet state stormwater requirements, there is not enough 
mitigation for stormwater runoff. 
 
Ms. Clopton said she agreed with Ms. McCabe. She expressed concern that the plans only mitigate for a 1” rain event 
when it should be mitigating for a 2” rain event, according to data she obtained from NOAA [National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration]. She also noted inconsistencies in the site plans which confused her. 
 
Ms. Schick agreed about encouraging higher than the minimum requirements. 
 
Ms. Tolson said it’s her understanding that DEQ has not approved the plans. 
 
Jack Clark of RRMM Architects explained that the typical process is to submit the first set of plans, receive comments 
from DEQ, then respond to those comments and resubmit the plans. DEQ approval is currently pending. 
 
Ms. Tolson asked if it’s appropriate for the Planning Commission to approve the plans before DEQ approval. 
 
Ms. Schick explained that the conditional use permit will require the plans to meet state stormwater requirements, but 
the Planning Commission cannot require that they be stricter. 
 
Ms. Clopton said we’re trying to set the standards for meeting stormwater here, and the school is basically going to set 
the standard. If it’s set at the minimum, then we’re not really going to move forward very well. 
 
Ms. Schick addressed growth data she obtained from the US Census. She expressed concern that the proposed school 
will not appropriately handle the town’s projected student growth. She added the following conditions to the 
conditional use permit: 1) expand plans to accommodate 10% growth over the next 30 years, 2) add 20 parking spaces, 
3) widen the sidewalk to the main public entrance, and 4) provide site plan for recreation and sports equipment. 
 
Ms. Clopton asked if the new school is supposed to be a disaster center. 
 
Ms. Schick said it’s not technically a disaster center because they have to meet additional requirements. 
 
Ms. Clopton said the rear entrance is kind of a second class entrance. She asked if the rear entrance could be as grand as 
the front entrance for kids getting dropped off. 
 
Dr. Kevin Newman, Superintendent of Colonial Beach Public Schools, clarified that the front entrance is for parent 
drop-off and students who walk. The rear entrance is for bus traffic, so that cars and bus traffic will be separate. 



Page | 6 

 
Ms. Clopton reiterated that she wants a more grand rear entrance. 
 
Ms. Schick asked for an elevation of the rear entrance. 
 
Mr. Clark said an elevation has been developed. It will be a nice entrance in that it’s wide, it’s got lots of glass and 
double doors. It’s not going to be as nice as the front of the building, it’s the back entrance to the building. 
Administratively it works great. For safety and security it works great because buses are completely separate from cars. 
There will never be a conflict between the two, and that’s the main issue with students entering and leaving the building.  
 
Ms. Clopton said what I’m trying to say is, these kids are coming in the back of the school. Can we make it as lovely and 
nice and grand an entrance instead of a second class entrance? 
 
Mayor Ham said with all due respect, we’re here to talk about a conditional use permit for putting a building there. The 
school is responsible for setting size requirements, design, and meeting state standards. I think the Planning 
Commission is getting a little far off field in trying to redesign the school that the School Board, various architects, and 
management officials have been working on for close to three years in planning for this.  
 
Ms. McCabe said she agrees with the Mayor, but she has never seen a strategic plan that is developed and happens 
overnight. She asked for strategic plans to be developed in the future. 
 
Ms. Schick said that she agrees that she doesn’t want to design the school, but if there was more involvement it 
would’ve been more understood that this is truly going to accommodate our needs in the next 20-30 years. She 
reiterated that widening the sidewalk is important for the public entrance. Also, with a conditional use permit it is 
common to include additional parking if necessary, or health and safety concerns.  
 
Ms. Schick formally added the following conditions to the conditional use permit: 

1. The applicant is encouraged to exceed the state stormwater regulations. 
2. The applicant is encouraged to consider accommodations for strategic growth within the Town concerning the 

size of the school and parking adjustments. 
3. The applicant is encouraged to develop a site plan for recreational uses on the property. 
4. The applicant shall widen the sidewalk at the entrance to the proposed school to accommodate for larger 

groups entering the school. 
 
Ms. Schick read the following paper: 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION PAPER 
AT THE REGULAR MEETING HELD, THURSDAY, APRIL 7, 2016 AT THE COLONIAL BEACH TOWN CENTER 

 

Whereas, the Colonial Beach Planning Commission finds that public necessity, convenience, general 

welfare and good zoning practice would be served by the recommending approval of CUP 01-2016; 

 

Now therefore be it resolved that the Colonial Beach Planning Commission hereby recommends 

approval of the CUP 01-2016, with amended conditions, and forwards the plan to the Town Council with 

a favorable recommendation in accordance with §15.2-2200 of the Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended. 

 
The motion was moved by Ms. McCabe. Mr. Nelson seconded. Ms. Schick called for a voice vote. 
 
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 8:  Review of Harry Prassenos’ Application for Planning Commission 
 
Ms. Schick asked if Mr. Prassenos was present. She requested his presence at the next meeting and postponed any 
action until then. 
 



Page | 7 

Item 9:  Review of Member Tolson’s Memo to the Planning Commission 
 
Ms. Tolson said she and Ms. Clopton had recently completed the first part of Planning Commissioner training. She said 
she is concerned that we have not had certain processes in place. The Planning Commissioners have to step up and take 
a part of this, if not take authority of it. She suggested that the Planning Commission develop an orientation for new 
members, provide more clarification on the roles and responsibilities of the Planning Commission, and develop a 
process for responding to citizen input. She expressed concern that she doesn’t think Town Council receives any 
clarification on the Planning Commission’s reasoning for recommendations.  
 
Ms. Clopton asked for a transmittal receipt to prove Town Council has received all Planning Commission documents 
and recommendations. 
 
Ms. Schick said many of the items in their memo were already addressed through the Planning Commission’s 2016 
goals. She asked Mr. Nelson if he received any documents from the Planning Department. 
 
Ms. Haynes said all documents were available online. 
 
Ms. Schick asked for printed copies to be made available. 
 
Ms. Clopton asked for the schedule to be planned six months in advance so that every meeting has substance, not just 
keeping up with the flow. She requested a financial forum to provide budgetary input on future projects. 
 
Ms. Schick said the Comp Plan update is in the 2016 goals. She said she is excited that the Commissioners want to take 
on more roles and responsibility. She said being more involved with staff is a positive, and another 2016 goal. 
 
Eddie Blunt, Vice Mayor, approached the podium as a citizen. He thanked the Commissioners for everything they’re 
doing. He encouraged better communication between the Planning Commission and Town Council.  
 
Ms. Schick said they have formally requested a joint work session with Council to be more fluid. She said in the past the 
Planning Commission has been very regimented, but now the Commissioners are certified and want to plan for the 
future.  
 
Mr. Blunt reiterated that there is often a lack of communication, which can be remedied by reaching out and asking 
questions. 
 
Ms. Clopton asked how we make that happen, because sometimes she feels like Planning Commission gets pushed 
back. She said they have asked for meetings that got canceled. 
 
Mr. Blunt said he would not answer on behalf of Council, but his personal view is that better communication is key to 
making informed decisions. Planning Commission and Town Council should be seamless. 
 
Ms. Schick said the attendance of Mayor Ham at Planning Commission meetings has been a step in the right direction. 
 
Mr. Blunt said everybody’s working for the same thing, and that is for the town to improve. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if Planning Commission could be copied on Town Council’s emails. 
 
Mr. McHugh asked Mr. Nelson if he was asking for Town Council’s packets. 
 
Ms. Schick suggested that he get on the Town Clerk’s email list to receive the packets. She said the Planning 
Commission’s voice recordings are available at the office and anybody is welcome to review them. We are still working 
on finding a new resource for videotaping. She agreed with the memo’s suggestion to have a formal transmittal. She 
suggested writing a summary of each meeting for the Council’s reference. 
 



Page | 8 

Ms. Tolson asked if whoever felt most comfortable with a topic could write the summary to be transmitted to Council. 
She expressed concern that if Council sends something back to Planning Commission, it seems to take months. 
 
Ms. Clopton said the transmittal is a matter of acknowledging that information has been received. The mayor signs to 
show he has received it and it’s been handed out to everybody. She asked if anything was received back about the CIP. 
 
Ms. Schick said the only thing in front of Town Council right now is the CIP and there has been clear acknowledgment 
of that. She said we can try a transmittal going forward. 
 
Ms. Clopton said it can just be a standard form. It doesn’t have to have a summary per se. It’s basically a form that gets 
signed and given back to us, like an invoice in a way. 
 
Ms. Schick said she understood. She worried that it’s adding more bureaucracy and paperwork to the process. 
 
Ms. Clopton reiterated that she wants something that acknowledges the work Planning Commission has done. 
 
Ms. Tolson said it appears to her that Town Council gets no input from Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. McCabe said the problem is that everybody’s overwhelmed. She noted certain items began years ago and are only 
now being addressed, such as Chapter 5 of the Comprehensive Plan. She said she felt frustrated and stymied by the 
work load. She hoped Town Council read the CIP because it took a lot of hours.  
 
Ms. Schick said the Town Council doesn’t have the same investment in the CIP. It’s very easy to get passionate because 
we’ve all spent so much time on it, and at least a signature on a transmittal will be acknowledgment of that. 
 
Ms. Tolson said Ms. Schick doesn’t get it and disagreed with her interpretation. She asked for a point-by-point summary 
of key reasons why we’ve voted and made a recommendation. 
 
Ms. Schick clarified that that information is in the staff reports to Council. 
 
Ms. Tolson said she’s never seen one. 
 
Mr. McHugh confirmed that he sends updated staff reports with Planning Commission’s revisions to Town Council. 
 
Ms. Tolson asked how she would know that because she’s never seen one. 
 
Mr. McHugh said it’s in the Town Council packet which can be requested from the Town Clerk. 
 
Ms. Clopton expressed concern that the Town Clerk doesn’t provide full packets. 
 
Ms. Schick said she understood that there’s frustration. She said she could do a better job of giving more background 
information when she speaks at Town Council meetings. 
 
Ms. McCabe said I don’t think they give you the opportunity to do that. 
 
Ms. Schick said they give me an opportunity to speak, but I try not to overdo it. 
 
Ms. Tolson reiterated her concerns. 
 
Ms. Schick asked for someone to volunteer to write the transmittal. 
 
Ms. Clopton volunteered. 
 
 
 



Page | 9 

Item 9.1:  Other Topics – Committee Appointment 
 
Ms. Schick appointed Mr. Nelson to the Public Outreach Committee. She called for a voice vote. 
 
 The appointment was approved unanimously. 
 
Ms. Schick clarified that Ms. Tolson would serve as Chair and Mr. Nelson would serve as Vice Chair of the Public 
Outreach Committee. 
 
Item 9.2:  Other Topics – Dr. Fahrney’s Letter 
 
Ms. Schick addressed the letter from Dr. Fahrney about the requested improvements to the community center. She said 
this is something that’s handled through the Town Manager and Town Council, but she wanted to publicly 
acknowledge and thank Dr. Fahrney for the letter. 
 
Susan Pietras-Smith of the Westmoreland News, speaking as a citizen, asked if the repairs included handicap 
accessibility. 
 
Ms. Schick confirmed. 
 
Ms. Clopton asked if a structural study has been done. 
 
Ms. Schick said the town’s building official visited the property by request of the Town Council and provided an 
analysis of the building. 
 
Item 9.3:  Other Topics – Mural Ordinance 
 
Ms. Schick proposed developing a mural ordinance for public art. She noted that Montross can be used as an example. 
 
Ms. Haynes clarified that staff has been aware of the need for a mural ordinance and has been researching provisions 
recommended by the Virginia Municipal League to make it compliant with federal law. 
 
Ms. Schick suggested researching other local ordinances so we don’t reinvent the wheel. 
 
Ms. Clopton asked what is on the calendar for the next meeting. 
 
Ms. Schick said Comp Plan review Chapter 1, as well as an update to the housing section prepared by Land Studio. 
 
Ms. Haynes said the housing section update is funded through a mixed-use/mixed-income grant obtained from the 
Virginia Housing Development Authority, and incorporates updated housing statistics and an analysis of the current 
housing stock. 
 
Item 10:  Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 


